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Report at the close of business as of the end of fiscal year

This Report is required by law: Section 5(c)(1)(A) of the Bank
Holding Company Act (12 U.S.C. § 1844 (c)(1)(A)); Section 8(a)
of the International Banking Act (12 U.S.C. § 3106(a)); Sections
11(a)(1), 25 and 25A of the Federal Reserve Act (12 U.S.C.
§§ 248(a)(1), 602, and 611a); Section 211.13(c) of Regulation K
(12 C.F.R. § 211.13(c)); and Section 225.5(b) of Regulation Y (12
C.F.R. § 225.5(b)) and section 10(c)(2)(H) of the Home Owners'
Loan Act. Return to the appropriate Federal Reserve Bank the
original and the number of copies specified.

?‘\: H ,;

This report form is to be filed by all top-tier bank holding compa-
nies and top-tier savings and loan holding companies organized
under U.S. law, and by any foreign banking organization that
does not meet the requirements of and is not treated as a qualify-
ing foreign banking organization under Section 211.23 of
Regulation K (12 C.F.R. § 211.23). (See page one of the general
instructions for more detail of who must file.) The Federal
Reserve may not conduct or sponsor, and an organization (or a
person) is not required to respond to, an information collection
unless it displays a currently valid OMB control number.

NOTE: The Annual Report of Holding Companies must be signed
by one director of the top-tier holding company. This individual
should also be a senior official of the top-tier holding company. In
the event that the top-tier holding company does not have an
individual who is a senior official and is also a director, the chair-
man of the board must sign the report.

I, Bill Stovall
Name of the Holding Company Director and Official

CEO / Director

Title of the Holding Company Director and Official
attest that the Annual Report of Holding Companies (including
the supporting attachments) for this report date has been pre-
pared in conformance with the instructions issued by the Federal
Reserve System and are true and correct to the best of my
knowledge and belief.

With respect to information regarding individuals contained in this
report, the Reporter certifies that it has the authority to provide this
information to the Federal Reserve. The Reporter also certifies
that it has the authority, on behalf of each individual, to consent or
object to public release of information regarding that individual.
The Federal Reserve may assume, in the absence of a request for
confidential treatment submitted in accordance with the Board's
"Rules Regarding Ayailability of. Informatigr,"” 12 C.F.R. Part 261,
that the Vi public release of all
details ij

L%

Sigﬁature of Holding CompM Director and Official

Date of Signature

For holding companies not registered with the SEC—
Indicate status of Annual Report to Shareholders:

is included with the FR Y-6 report

[J will be sent under separate cover

[ is not prepared

For Federal Reserve Bank Use Only

RSSDCMDI A8LI150

Date of Report (top-tier holding company's fiscal year-end):
December 31, 2015
Month / Day / Year

N/A
Reporter's Legal Entity Identifier (LEI) (20-Character LEI Code)

Reporter's Name, Street, and Mailing Address
Midland Bancshares Inc.
Legal Title of Holding Company

P.O. Box 3903

(Mailing Address of the Holding Company) Street / P.O. Box
Midland X 79702
City State Zip Code

401 W. Texas Midland, TX 79701

Physical Location (if different from mailing address)

Person to whom questions about this report should be directed:
Sandra Villareal Controller
Name Title
432-262-1701

Area Code / Phone Number / Extension
432-262-1543

Area Code / FAX Number
svillarreal@cnbtx.com

E-mail Address

www.cnbtx.net

Address (URL) for the Holding Company's web page

Does the reporter request confidential treatment for any portion of this
submission?

D Yes Please identify the report items to which this request applies:

In accordance with the instructions on pages GEN-2
and 3, a letter justifying the request is being provided.

[] The information for which confidential treatment is sought
is being submitted separately labeled "Confidential."

No

Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to vary from 1.3 to 101 hours per response, with an average of 5.25 hours per response, including time to gather and
maintain data in the required form and to review instructions and complete the information collection. Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of
information, including suggestions for reducing this burden to: Secretary, Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, 20th and C Streets, NW, Washington, DC 20551, and to the

Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (7100-0297), Washington, DC

s 12/2015



For Use By Tiered Holding Companies

FRY-6
Page 2 of 2

Top-tiered holding companies must list the names, mailing address, and physical locations of each of their subsidiary holding companies

below.

Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company

Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street / P.O. Box

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street / P.O. Box

City State Zip Code

City State Zip Code

Physical Location (if different from mailing address)

Physical Location (if different from mailing address)

Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company

Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street / P.O. Box

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street / P.O. Box

City State Zip Code

City State Zip Code

Physical Location (if different from mailing address)

Physical Location (if different from mailing address)

Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company

Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street / P.O. Box

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street / P.O. Box

City State Zip Code

City State Zip Code

Physical Location (if different from mailing address)

Physical Location (if different from mailing address)

Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company

Legal Title of Subsidiary Holding Company

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street / P.O. Box

(Mailing Address of the Subsidiary Holding Company) Street / P.O. Box

City State Zip Code

City State Zip Code

Physical Location (if different from mailing address)

Physical Location (if different from mailing address)

12/2012
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MIDLAND BANCSHARES, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
together with

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Midland Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Midland Bancshares, Inc. and
Subsidiaries (the Company) which comprises the consolidated statements of financial condition as of December
31, 2015 and 2014, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, shareholders’
equity, and cash flows for the years then ended and the related notes to the financial statements. We also have
audited management’s assertion, included in the accompanying Management Report Regarding Statement of
Management’s Responsibilities, Compliance with Designated Laws and Regulations, and Management’s
Assessment of Internal Control over Financial Reporting, that Community National Bank and Subsidiary (the
Bank) maintained effective internal control over financial reporting, including controls over the preparation of
regulatory financial statements in accordance with Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council
Instructions for Consolidated Reports of Condition and Income (call report instructions) as of December 31, 2015
based on the framework set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013 Framework).

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements and Internal Control over Financial
Reporting

The Company’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
for maintaining internal control over financial reporting including the design, implementation and maintenance of
controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to error or fraud, and for its assertion of the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management Report Regarding Statement of Management’s
Responsibilities, Compliance with Designated Laws and Regulations, and Management’s Assessment of Internal
Control over Financial Reporting.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and an opinion on
management’s assertion regarding the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control over financial reporting based
on our audits. We conducted our audits of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and our audit of internal control over financial
reporting in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over
financial reporting was maintained in all material respects.

An audit of the consolidated financial statements involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit of internal control over financial reporting involves obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
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Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that the audit evidence we obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Definition and Inherent Limitations of Internal Control

An entity’s internal control over financial reporting is a process effected by those charged with governance,
management, and other personnel, designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the preparation of reliable
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Because management’s assessment and our examination were conducted to meet the reporting requirements of
Section 112 of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act (FDICIA), our audit of Community
National Bank’s internal control over financial reporting included controls over the preparation of financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and
controls over the preparation of schedules equivalent to basic financial statements in accordance with the Federal
Financial Institutions Examination Council Instructions for Consolidated Reports of Condition and Income (call
report instructions). An entity’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the entity; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the entity are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and those charged with governance; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention, or timely detection and correction of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
entity’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinions

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Midland Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in our opinion, management’s assertion that
Community National Bank and Subsidiary maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2015 is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the framework set forth by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013
Framework).

Diowis Lnad v (3, PC
Certified Public Accountants

Abilene, Texas
March 7, 2016
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Management Report Regarding Statement of Management’s Responsibilities, Compliance with Designated Laws
and Regulations, and Management’s Assessment of Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Community National Bank and Subsidiary

Statement of Management’s Responsibilities

The management of Community National Bank and Subsidiary (the Bank) is responsible for preparing the Bank’s
annual consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America; for establishing and maintaining an adequate internal control structure and procedures
for financial reporting, including controls over the preparation of regulatory financial statements in accordance
with Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council Instructions for Consolidated Reports of Condition and
Income (call report instructions); and for complying with the federal laws and regulations pertaining to insider
loans and the federal and, if applicable, state laws and regulations pertaining to.dividend restrictions.

Management’s Assessment of Compliance With Designated Laws and Regulations

The management of the Bank has assessed the Bank’s compliance with the federal laws and regulations pertaining
to insider loans and the federal and, if applicable, state laws and regulations pertaining to dividend restrictions
during the fiscal year that ended on December 31, 2015. Based upon its assessment, management has concluded
that the Bank complied with the federal laws and regulations pertaining to insider loans and the federal and, if
applicable, state laws and regulations pertaining to dividend restrictions during the fiscal year that ended on
December 31, 2015.

Management’s Assessment of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Bank’s internal control over financial reporting is a process effected by those charged with governance,
management, and other personnel, designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of reliable financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America and financial statements for regulatory reporting purposes, i.e., the
Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council Instructions for Consolidated Reports of Condition and
Income (call report instructions). The Bank’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Bank; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America and financial statements for regulatory reporting purposes, and
that receipts and expenditures of the Bank are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the Bank; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention, or timely detection and
correction of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Bank’s assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

Member FDIC e



Management assessed the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control over financial reporting, including controls
over the preparation of regulatory financial statements in accordance with the instructions for the Federal
Financial Institutions Examination Council Instructions for Consolidated Reports of Condition and Income (call
report instructions), as of December 31, 2015, based on the framework set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission in Internal Control—Integrated Framework (2013 Framework).
Based upon its assessment, management has concluded that, as of December 31, 2015, the Bank’s internal control
over financial reporting, including controls over the preparation of regulatory financial statements in accordance
with the instructions for the Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council Instructions for Consolidated
Reports of Condition and Income (call report instructions), is effective based on the framework set forth by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework (2013 Framework).

Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, including controls over
the preparation of regulatory financial statements in accordance with Federal Financial Institutions Examination
Council Instructions for Consolidated Reports of Condition and Income (call report instructions), as of December
31, 2015 has been audited by Davis Kinard & Co, PC, an independent public accounting firm, as stated in their
report dated March 7, 2016.

W va

Jeb B. Hughes
Chairman of the Board
(Midland Bancshares Inc. and Community National Bank)

Wy

William D. Stovall
Chief Executive Officer (Midland Bancshares Inc.) and
Chief Executive Officer (Community National Bank)

enior Vice Presi and Chief Operating Officer
(Midland Bancshares Inc. and Community National Bank)
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MIDLAND BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition
December 31, 2015 and 2014

Assets

Cash and due from banks
Cash and cash equivalents

Interest bearing deposits in banks

Securities available for sale

Investment in Midland Statutory Trust II

Investment in Midland Statutory Trust III

Loans held for sale

Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan
losses of $10,831,499 in 2015 and $8,155,988 in 2014

Accrued interest receivable

Premises and equipment

Goodwill

Cash surrender value of life insurance

Restricted investments held at cost

Other assets

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

Noninterest bearing
Interest bearing
Total deposits

Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Line of credit
Subordinated debentures

Total liabilities

Shareholders' equity

Common stock, $1 par value; 2,000,000 shares authorized;
875,247 and 869,623 shares issued in 2015 and 2014,
respectively; 863,406 and 855,749 shares outstanding

in 2015 and 2014, respectively

Preferred stock, $10 par value; 2,000 shares authorized;

1,826 shares issued and outstanding in 2015

Capital surplus

Retained earnings

Treasury stock, at cost

Net unrealized appreciation on available for
sale securities, net of taxes of $158,412 and
$88.332 in 2015 and 2014, respectively

Total shareholders' equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of these consolidated financial statements.

$

$

$

2015 2014
24,225,099 $ 24,296,163
24,225,000 24,296,163
56,388,529 143,263,968

233,105,640 294,796,838
85,000 85,000
202,000 202,000
668,415 1,833,427
711,275,087 650,024,010

3,816,246 3,896,397

8,491,134 8,602,374
15,251,182 15,251,182
23,606,107 12,534,748

1,773,644 1,743,929

1,753,821 1,119,906

1,080,641,904

1,157,649,942

492,104,310 563,092,383
468,014,972 495,557,873
960,119,282 1,058.650.256
2,175,263 1,677.888

- 4,248,000
9,512,000 9,512,000
971,806,545 1,074,088,144
875,247 869,623

18,260 :

43,049,575 24,329,180
65,031,612 58,704,852
(433,529) (505,903)
294,194 164,046
108,835,350 83.561,798

1,080,641,904 §

1,157,649,942




MIDLAND BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Income
Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

2015 2014
Interest income
Loans, including fees $ 34,228,737 36,381,484
Debt securities
Taxable 1,786,580 1,867,499
Tax exempt 724,528 732,827
Deposits with banks 564,064 533,431
Total interest income 37,303,909 39,515,241
Interest expense
Deposits 942,552 850,971
Line of credit 171,219 263,412
Subordinated debentures 191,977 186,802
Total interest expense 1,305,748 1,301,185
Net interest income 35,998,161 38,214,056
Provision for loan losses 5,086,199 1,825,000
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 30,911,962 36,389,056
Noninterest income
Service charges on deposit accounts 1,036,061 1,036,919
Real estate mortgage fees 1,174,693 1,087,209
Debit card income 941,127 989,018
Other income 1,119,666 508,467
Total noninterest income 4,271,547 3,621,613
Noninterest expenses
Salaries and employee benefits 14,155,611 13,107,638
Occupancy and equipment expense 3,113,121 3,147,601
IT and data processing 1,232,649 1,713,355
FDIC assessments 609,424 565,060
Director compensation 553,500 567,500
Other expense 3,593,535 3,370,297
Total noninterest expenses 23,257,840 22,471,451
Income before income taxes 11,925,669 17,539,218
Income tax expense 3,880,910 6,038,946
Net income $ 8,044,759 11,500,272

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of these consolidated financial statements.



MIDLAND BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

2015 2014
Net income $ 8,044,759 $ 11,500,272
Other items of comprehensive income
Change in unrealized appreciation on
investment securities available for sale, before tax 200,228 (52,036)
Total other items of comprehensive income 200,228 (52,036)
Comprehensive income before tax 8,244 987 11,448,236
Income tax (expense) benefit related to other items
of comprehensive income (70,080) 15,169
Comprehensive income $ 8,174,907 $ 11,463,405

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of these consolidated financial statements.






MIDLAND BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity
Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

Common
Stock

Preferred
Stock

Balance at January 1, 2014 $ 866,311 $

Sale of treasury stock -
Stock options exercised 3,312
Net income for 2014 -
Dividends paid -
Stock-based compensation -
Net changes in unrealized appreciation on

available for sale securities, net of taxes of ($15,169) -

Balance at December 31,2014 869,623
Sale of treasury stock -
Sale of preferred stock -
Stock options exercised 5,624
Net income for 2015 -
Dividends paid -
Stock-based compensation -
Net changes in unrealized appreciation on

available for sale securities, net of taxes of $70,080 -

Balance at December 31, 2015 $ 875,247 $

18,260

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of these consolidated financial statements.



Net Unrealized
Appreciation on
Available for Sale Total
Capital Retained Treasury Securities, Shareholders'
Surplus Earnings Stock, at Cost Net of Taxes Equity

23,834,833 § 48,909,528 $ (562,258) $ 200913 $ 73,249,327
156,084 - 56,355 - 212,439
124,763 - - - 128,075

- 11,500,272 - - 11,500,272
- (1,704,948) - - (1,704,948)
213,500 - - - 213,500
- - - (36,867) (36,867)
24,329,180 58,704,852 (505,903) 164,046 83,561,798
174,838 - 72,374 - 247,212
18,241,740 - - - 18,260,000
248,305 - - - 253,929

- 8,044,759 - - 8,044,759
- (1,717,999) - - (1,717,999)
55,512 - - - 55,512

- - - 130,148 130,148
43,049,575 65,031,612 § (433,529) $ 294,194 § 108,835,359
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MIDLAND BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to
net cash provided by operating activities
Provision for loan losses
Net amortization of securities
Depreciation
Appreciation in cash surrender value of life insurance
Deferred income tax
Stock based compensation
Net change in
Loans held for sale
Accrued interest receivable
Other assets
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Net change in interest bearing deposits in banks
Activity in available for sale securities

Maturities, prepayments and calls

Purchases
Purchase of life insurance policies
Net change in restricted investments held at cost
Loan originations and principal collections, net
Additions to premises and equipment

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Net change in deposits
Net change in short term borrowing
Proceeds from sale of preferred stock
Proceeds from sale of treasury stock
Proceeds from exercise of stock options
Dividends paid
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of these consolidated financial statements.

2015 2014
8,044,759 $ 11,500,272
5,086,199 1,825,000
3,144,466 3,496,622
1,067,265 903,899

(406,910) (34,748)
(488,409) (295,607)
55,512 213,500
1,165,012 187,156
80,151 (329,671)
(633,915) (17,238)
915,704 144,754
18,029,834 17,593,939
86,875,439 (1,159,523)
210,789,917 223,689,931
(152,042,957)  (247,387,207)
(10,664,449) (12,500,000)
(29,715) (110,297)
(66,337,276) (66,068,706)
(956,025) (1,556,562)
67,634,934 (105,092.364)
(98,530,974) 74,726,150
(4,248,000) (3.352,000)
18,260,000 -
247212 212,439
253,929 128,075
(1,717,999) (1,704,948)
(85,735,832) 70,000,716
(71,064) (17,488,709)
24,296,163 41,784,872
24225099 $ 24,296,163




MIDLAND BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Nature of Operations

Midland Bancshares, Inc. (the Company) and its subsidiary, Community National Bank (the Bank), provide
loans and banking services to consumers and commercial customers in Midland, Texas and the surrounding area.
Capital Banking Solutions, Inc. (CBS) was formed on September 18, 2014 as a subsidiary of the Bank to provide
consulting services to other banks. The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles and to general practices of the banking industry. Policies and practices
which materially affect the determination of financial position, results of operations and cash flows are
summarized as follows:

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries.
All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

In preparing consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the balance sheet and reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Material estimates that are
particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term relate to the determination of the allowance for loan
losses and fair value of financial instruments.

Significant Group Concentrations of Credit Risk

Most of the Company's activities are with customers located within Midland and the surrounding areas. Note 2
discusses the types of securities in which the Company invests. Note 3 discusses the types of lending in which the
Company engages. The Company does not have any significant concentrations to any one industry or customer.

The Company carries certain assets with other financial institutions which are subject to credit risk by the amount
such assets exceed federal deposit insurance limits. At December 31, 2015 and 2014, the deposits, as reported by
the banks, were $43,491,818 and $77,767,322, respectively. Management monitors the financial stability of
correspondent banks and considers amounts advanced in excess of FDIC insurance limits to present no significant
additional risk to the Company.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purpose of the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash and balances

due from banks and federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell, all of which mature
within ninety days.

-10-



MIDLAND BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Cash and Cash Equivalents — continued

The Company is required to maintain average balances on hand or with the Federal Reserve Bank. The Company
properly maintained amounts in excess of $-0- and $52,050,000 as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Interest Bearing Deposits in Banks
Interest bearing deposits in banks mature within one year and are carried at cost.
Securities

Certain debt securities that management has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as
“held to maturity” and recorded at amortized cost. Securities not classified as held to maturity, including equity
securities with readily determinable fair values, are classified as “available for sale” and recorded at fair value,
with unrealized gains and losses excluded from earnings and reported in other comprehensive income.

Purchase premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using the interest method over the terms of
the securities. Declines in the fair value of held to maturity and available for sale securities below their cost that
are deemed to be other than temporary are reflected in earnings as realized losses.

In determining whether other-than-temporary impairment exists, management considers many factors, including
(1) the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost, (2) the financial condition and
near-term prospects of the issuer, and (3) the intent and ability of the Company to retain its investment in the
issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value. Gains and losses on the
sale of securities are recorded on the trade date and are determined using the specific identification method.

Investments in equity securities are carried at the lower of cost or estimated fair value. Any changes to the cost
basis of these investments are recorded in the income statement. These investments are reviewed annually to
determine if an impairment charge is necessary. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, no impairment charges were
recorded.

Loans Held for Sale

Loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at the lower of cost or market. Gains
and losses on loan sales (sales proceeds minus carrying value) are recorded in noninterest income, and direct loan
origination costs and fees are deferred at origination of the loan and are recognized in noninterest income upon
sale of loan.

-11 -



MIDLAND BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Loans

The Company grants mortgage, commercial and consumer loans to customers. A substantial portion of the loan
portfolio is represented by commercial loans throughout the Midland County area. The ability of the Company’s
debtors to honor their contracts is dependent upon the general economic conditions in this area.

Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or pay-off
which are measured at historical cost are generally reported at their outstanding unpaid principal balances net of
any unearned income, charge-offs, and unamortized deferred fees and costs on originated loans. Loan origination
fees and certain direct origination costs are deferred and recognized as adjustments to interest income over the
lives of the related loans. Unearned income is amortized to interest income using a level yield methodology.

The Company makes disclosures of loans and other financing receivables and the related allowance in accordance
with ASC Topic 310, Receivables. The accounting guidance defines a portfolio segment as the level at which an
entity develops and documents a systematic methodology to determine the allowance for credit losses, and a class
of financing receivables as the level of disaggregation of portfolio segments based on the initial measurement
attribute, risk characteristics and methods for assessing risk. The Company’s portfolio segments are Real estate,
Construction, Energy, Consumer and Commercial. The classes of financing receivables within the real estate
segment are 1-4 Residential and Commercial real estate. The remaining portfolio segments contain a single class
of financing receivables. Under this accounting guidance, the allowance is presented by portfolio segment.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for credit losses, which includes the allowance for loan losses and the reserve for unfunded lending
commitments, represents management’s estimate of probable losses inherent in the Company’s lending activities.
The allowance for loan losses does not include amounts related to accrued interest receivable as accrued interest
receivable is reversed when a loan is placed on nonaccrual status.

The allowance for loan losses represents the estimated probable credit losses in funded consumer and commercial
loans while the reserve for unfunded lending commitments, including standby letters of credit and binding
unfunded loan commitments, represents estimated probable credit losses on these unfunded credit instruments
based on utilization assumptions. Credit exposures deemed to be uncollectible are charged against these accounts.
Cash recovered on previously charged off amounts is recorded as a recovery to these accounts.

Management evaluates the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses based on the combined total of these two
components. The Company performs periodic and systematic detailed reviews of its lending portfolios to identify
credit risks and assess the overall collectability of those portfolios. The allowance on certain homogenous loan
portfolios is based on aggregated portfolio segment evaluations.
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MIDLAND BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Allowance for Loan Losses — continued

Loss forecast models are utilized for these portfolios which consider a variety of factors including, but not limited
to, historical loss experience, estimated defaults or foreclosures based on portfolio trends, delinquencies,
bankruptcies, economic conditions and credit scores.

The Company’s real estate portfolio segment is comprised primarily of homogenous loans secured by residential
and commercial real estate. The amount of losses incurred in the homogenous loan pools is estimated based upon
how many of the loans will default and the loss in the event of default. Using modeling methodologies, the
Company estimates how many of the homogenous loans will default based on the individual loans’ attributes
aggregated into pools of homogenous loans with similar attributes. The attributes that are most significant to the
probability of default and are used to estimate default include the loan-to-value, borrower credit score, months
since origination, geography, and present collection status. The estimate is based on the Company’s historical
experience with the loan portfolio. The estimate is adjusted to reflect an assessment of environmental factors that
are not reflected in the historical data, such as changes in real estate values, local and national economies,
underwriting standards and the regulatory environment.

The allowance on the remaining portfolio segments (Construction, Energy, Consumer and Commercial) are
calculated using loss rates delineated by risk rating and product type. Factors considered when assessing loss
rates include the value of the underlying collateral, the industry of the obligor, the obligor’s liquidity and other
financial and qualitative factors. These statistical models are updated regularly for changes in economic and
business conditions. Included in the analysis of these loan portfolios are reserves which are maintained to cover
uncertainties that affect the Company’s estimate of probable losses including economic uncertainty and large
single defaults.

Nonperforming loans are reviewed in accordance with applicable accounting guidance on impaired loans and
troubled debt restructurings (TDRs). If necessary, a specific allowance is established for these loans if they are
deemed to be impaired. A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is
probable that the Company will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due
according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by management in determining
impairment include payment status, collateral value, and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and
interest payments when due. Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally
are not classified as impaired. Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls
on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower,
including the length of delay, the reason for the delay, the borrower's prior payment record, and the amount of the
shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed. Impairment is measured on a loan by loan basis for
commercial and construction loans by either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the
loan's effective interest rate, the loan's obtainable market price, or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is
collateral dependent. For such loans that are classified as impaired, an allowance is established when the
discounted cash flows (or collateral value or observable market price) of the impaired loan is lower than the
carrying value of the loan.



MIDLAND BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Allowance for Loan Losses — continued

The general component covers non-classified loans and is based on historical loss experience adjusted for
qualitative factors. An unallocated component is maintained to cover uncertainties that could affect management's
estimate of probable losses. The unallocated component of the allowance reflects the margin of imprecision
inherent in the underlying assumptions used in the methodologies for estimating specific and general losses in the
portfolio.

Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment. Accordingly, the
Company does not separately identify individual consumer and residential loans for impairment disclosures, unless
such loans are subject of a restructuring agreement.

In addition to the allowance for loan losses, the Company also estimates probable losses related to unfunded
lending commitments, such as letters of credit and financial guarantees, and binding unfunded loan commitments.
Unfunded lending commitments are subject to individual reviews and are analyzed and segregated by risk
according to the Company’s internal risk rating scale. These risk classifications, in conjunction with an analysis of
historical loss experience, utilization assumptions, current economic conditions, performance trends within the
portfolio and any other pertinent information, result in the estimation of the reserve for unfunded lending
commitments.

The allowance for credit losses related to the loan portfolio is reported as a part of loans in the consolidated
statement of condition whereas the reserve for unfunded lending commitments is reported on the consolidated
statement of condition in accrued expenses and other liabilities. Provision for credit losses related to the loan
portfolio and unfunded lending commitments is reported separately in the consolidated statement of income.

Nonperforming Loans, Charge-Offs and Delinquencies

Nonperforming loans generally include loans that have been placed on nonaccrual status including nonaccrual
loans whose contractual terms have been restructured in a manner that grants a concession to a borrower
experiencing financial difficulties.

The entire balance of a loan is contractually delinquent if the minimum payment is not received by the specified
due date on the customer’s billing statement. Interest and fees continue to accrue on past due loans until the date
the loan goes into nonaccrual status, if applicable.

The outstanding balance of real estate secured loans, including all classes of financing receivables within the real
estate portfolio segment, that is in excess of the estimated property value, less estimated costs to sell, is charged off
no later than the end of the month in which the account becomes 180 days past due. The estimated property value,
less costs to sell, is determined utilizing appraisals or broker price opinions of the fair value of the collateral. The
outstanding balance of loans within the remaining loan segments (Construction, Energy, Consumer and
Commercial) are charged off no later than the end of the month in which the account becomes 120 days past due.
For secured loans, accounts are written down to the collateral value.
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MIDLAND BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Nonperforming Loans, Charge-Offs and Delinquencies — continued

The fair value of the collateral is estimated by management based on current financial information, inspections,
and appraisals. For unsecured loans, the outstanding balance is written off.

Loans within all portfolio segments are generally placed on nonaccrual status and classified as nonperforming at 90
days past due. Accrued interest receivable is reversed when a loan is placed on nonaccrual status. Interest
collections on nonaccruing loans for which the ultimate collectability of principal is uncertain are applied as
principal reductions; otherwise, such collections are credited to interest income when received. These loans may
be restored to accrual status when all principal and interest is current and full repayment of the remaining
contractual principal and interest is expected, or when the loan otherwise becomes well-secured and is in the
process of collection.

Loans whose contractual terms have been modified in a TDR and are current at the time of the restructuring remain
on accrual status if there is demonstrated performance prior to the restructuring and repayment in full under the
restructured terms is expected. Otherwise, the loans are placed on nonaccrual status and reported as
nonperforming until there is sustained repayment performance for a reasonable period, generally six months.
TDRs that are on accrual status are reported as performing TDRs through the end of the calendar year in which the
restructuring occurred or the year in which the loans are returned to accrual status, however, will continue to be
reported as an impaired loan until paid in full due to the inherent risk associated with a TDR. In addition, if
accruing TDRs bear less than a market rate of interest at the time of modification, they are reported as performing
TDRs throughout the remaining lives of the loans.

The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through a provision for loan
losses charged to earnings. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the
uncollectibility of a loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance.

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based upon management's
periodic review of the collectibility of the loans in light of historical experience, the nature and volume of the loan
portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower's ability to repay, estimated value of any underlying
collateral and prevailing economic conditions. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates
that are susceptible to significant revisions as more information becomes available.

Troubled Debt Restructured Loans

A troubled debt restructured loan is a loan which the Company, for reasons related to a borrower's financial
difficulties, grants a concession to the borrower that the Company would not otherwise consider. The loan terms
which have been modified or restructured due to a borrower's financial difficulty, include but are not limited to a
reduction in the stated interest rate; an extension of the maturity at an interest rate below current market; a
reduction in the face amount of the debt; a reduction in the accrued interest; or re-aging, extensions, deferrals,
renewals and rewrites. A troubled debt restructured loan would generally be considered impaired in the year of
modification and will be considered impaired for the remainder of the loan until paid in full.
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MIDLAND BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Polices — continued
Financial Instruments

In the ordinary course of business the Company has entered into commitments to extend credit, including standby
letters of credit. Such financial instruments are recorded when they are funded.

Foreclosed Assets

Assets acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure are initially recorded at fair value less estimated cost to sell
at the date of foreclosure. All write-downs based on the asset’s fair value at the date of acquisition are charged to
the allowance for loan loss. After foreclosure, property held for sale is carried at the lower of the new cost basis
or fair value less cost to sell and depreciation is not recorded.

Impairment losses on property to be held and used are measured at the amount by which the carrying amount of a
property exceeds its fair value and depreciated based on the remaining useful life. Costs of significant property
improvements are capitalized, whereas cost related to holding property are expensed. Valuations are periodically
performed by management, and any subsequent write-downs are recorded as a charge to operations, if necessary,
to reduce the carrying value of the property to lower of its costs or fair value less costs to sell.

Banking Premises and Equipment

Land is carried at cost. Buildings and equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
amortization computed on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets or the expected
terms of the leases, if shorter.

Income Taxes

On January 1, 2009, the Company adopted changes to FASB ASC 740 — Accounting for Income Taxes related to
accounting for uncertainty in income taxes, which sets out a consistent framework to determine the appropriate
level of tax reserves to maintain for uncertain tax positions. The Company had no unrecognized tax benefits and
believes it has no uncertain tax positions at December 31, 2015 and 2014.

The Company’s income tax expense consists of a current and a deferred component. Current income tax expense
reflects taxes to be paid or refunded for the current period by applying the provisions of the enacted tax law to the
taxable income or excess of deductions over revenues. The Company determines deferred income taxes using the
liability (or balance sheet) method. Under this method, the net deferred tax asset or liability is based on the tax
effects of the differences between the book and tax bases of assets and liabilities, and enacted changes in tax rates
and laws are recognized in the period in which they occur.

Deferred income tax expense results from changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities between periods. Deferred

tax assets are recognized if it is more likely than not, based on the technical merits, that the tax position will be
realized or sustained upon examination.
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MIDLAND BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Polices — continued
Income Taxes — continued

The term more likely than not means a likelihood of more than 50%; the terms examined and upon examination
also include resolution of the related appeals or litigation processes, if any. A tax position that meets the more-
likely-than-not recognition threshold is initially and subsequently measured as the largest amount of tax benefit
that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon settlement with a taxing authority that has full
knowledge of all relevant information.

The determination of whether or not a tax position has met the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold
considers the facts, circumstances, and information available at the reporting date and is subject to management’s
judgment. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance if, based on the weight of evidence available,
it is more likely than not that some portion or all of a deferred tax asset will not be realized.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties on income taxes as a component of income tax expense. During
the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company recognized no interest and penalties. Based on management’s
analysis, the Company did not have any uncertain tax positions as of December 31, 2015 and 2014. The
Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and the state of Texas. There are currently no
income tax examinations underway for these jurisdictions. The Company’s income tax returns are subject to
examination by the relevant taxing authorities as follows: U.S. federal income tax returns for tax years 2012 and
forward; Texas income and margin tax returns for tax years 2011 and forward.

In May of 2006, the State of Texas implemented a new tax on taxable margin, effective for years ended after
December 31, 2006. For the Company, taxable margin is revenue less interest expense. The margin tax was
insignificant for the year ended December 31, 2015. The deferred tax component of this tax is insignificant.

Cash Surrender Value of Life Insurance

The Company has purchased life insurance policies on certain executives. Life insurance policies are initially
recorded at cost at the date of purchase. Subsequent to purchase, the policies are periodically adjusted for changes
in contract value. The adjustment to contract value increases or decreases the carrying value of the policies and is
recorded as an income or expense on the consolidated statement of income.

Derivatives
Derivatives are recognized as assets and liabilities on the statement of condition and measured at fair value. For
exchange-traded contracts, fair value is based on quoted market prices. For nonexchange traded contracts, fair

value is based on dealer quotes, pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies, or similar techniques for
which the determination of fair value may require significant management judgment or estimation.
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MIDLAND BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Polices — continued
Derivative Loan Commitments

Mortgage loan commitments that relate to the origination of a mortgage that will be held for sale upon funding are
considered derivative instruments under the derivatives and hedging accounting guidance (FASB ASC 815,
Derivatives and Hedging). Loan commitments that are derivatives are recognized at fair value on the statement of
condition in other assets and other liabilities with changes in their fair values recorded in noninterest income.

Forward Loan Commitments

The Company carefully evaluates all loan sales agreements to determine whether they meet the definition of a
derivative under FASB ASC 815 as facts and circumstances may differ significantly.

If agreements qualify, to protect against the price risk inherent in derivative loan commitments, the Company uses
"best efforts" forward loan sale commitments to mitigate the risk of potential decreases in the values of loans that
would result from the exercise of the derivative loan commitments. Accordingly, forward loan sale commitments
are recognized at fair value on the statement of condition in other assets and liabilities with changes in their fair
values recorded in other noninterest income.

The Company estimates the fair value of its forward loan sales commitments using a methodology similar to that
used for derivative loan commitments.

Treasury Stock

Treasury stock is accounted for on the cost method and consists of 11,841 shares in 2015 and 13,874 shares in
2014.

Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expenses for the years ended December 31, 2015 and
2014 amounted to $127,850 and $215,309, respectively.

Business Combinations, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Authoritative accounting guidance requires that all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 are
accounted for under the purchase method and addresses the initial recognition and measurement of goodwill and
other intangible assets acquired in a business combination. The guidance addresses the initial recognition and
measurement of intangible assets acquired in a business combination and the accounting for goodwill and other
intangible assets subsequent to their acquisition. The guidance provides that intangible assets with finite useful
lives be amortized and that goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives not be amortized, but rather be
tested at least annually for impairment. The goodwill recorded on acquisitions amounted to $15,251,182 and is
not subject to amortization. The Company conducted a goodwill impairment test for the years ended December
31,2015 and 2014. There were no reductions of recorded goodwill resulting from the impairment test.
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MIDLAND BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Stock Based Compensation

Stock compensation authoritative guidance requires that the compensation cost relating to share-based payment
transactions be recognized in financial statements. That cost will be measured based on the grant date fair value of
the equity or liability instruments issued. The stock compensation accounting guidance covers a wide range of
share-based compensation arrangements including stock options, restricted share plans, performance-based
awards, share appreciation rights, and employee share purchase plans.

The stock compensation accounting guidance requires that compensation cost for all stock awards be calculated
and recognized over the employees' service period, generally defined as the vesting period. The guidance permits
entities to use any option-pricing model that meets the fair value objective in the guidance.

The Company elected to adopt the guidance on October 1, 2007 under the modified prospective method.

Software Development Costs

The Company capitalizes certain costs incurred to produce proprietary software used to process money transfers.
Such costs, including coding, testing, and product quality assurance, are capitalized once technological feasibility
has been established. Amortization is computed on a case-by-case basis over the estimated economic life of the
software, which is 5 years.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2014-9, “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Topic 606).” This guidance is a comprehensive new revenue recognition standard that will supersede
substantially all existing revenue recognition guidance. The new standard’s core principle is that a company will
recognize revenue when it transfers promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. In doing so,
companies will need to use more judgement and make more estimates than under existing guidance. These may
include identifying performance obligations in the contract, estimating the amount of variable consideration to
include in the transaction price and allocating the transaction price to each separate performance obligation. On
July 9, 2015, the FASB agreed to delay the effective date of the standard by one year. Therefore, the new standard
will be effective in the first quarter of 2018 and is not expected to have a significant impact to the Company’s
financial statements.

In 2015, FASB amended its authoritative guidance related to debt issuance costs. The amendment requires that
debt issuance costs related to a recognized debt liability be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction
from the carrying amount of the debt liability. However, the recognition and measurement guidance related to
debt issuance costs is not affected by this amendment. The amendment is effective for annual and interim
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2015 and is to be applied on a retrospective basis. The Company
does not expect this amendment to have a significant impact to the Company’s financial statements.
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MIDLAND BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Recent Accounting Pronouncements - continued

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-01, “Financial Instruments — Overall: Recognition and
Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities.” The amendment has a number of provisions
including the requirements that public business entities use the exit price notion when measuring the fair value of
financial instruments for disclosure purposes, a separate presentation of financial assets and financial liabilities by
measurement category and form of financial asset (i.e. securities or loans receivables), and eliminating the
requirement for public business entities to disclose the methods and significant assumptions used to estimate the
fair value that is required to be disclosed for financial instruments measured at amortized cost. The amendment is
effective for annual and interim reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017. The Company is
evaluating the potential impact of the amendment on the financial statements

Preferred Stock

The Company has the authority to issue up the 2,000 shares of preferred stock. The preferred stock is available for
issuance from time to time to strengthen the Bank’s capital ratios, support loan growth and for general corporate
purposes.

The preferred stock has a subscription price of $10,000 per share and a par value of $10 per share. Cumulative

dividends will accrue at a rate of 5% per annum. Dividends are payable quarterly in arrears on each January 15,
April 15, July 15 and October 15.

The Company has the option to redeem the preferred shares three years after the date the shares are issued. The
Company must redeem the preferred shares five years after the shares are issued. The preferred stock ranks senior
to the common stock with respect to the payments of dividends and distributions and amounts payable upon
liquidation, dissolution and winding up of the Company. The preferred stock generally is non-voting.

NOTE 2: Securities

The amortized cost and fair value of securities, with gross unrealized gains and losses, follows:

December 31, 2015

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Available for Sale Cost Gains Losses Value
U.S. government and agency $ 165,736,633 $ 188,133 § (64,334) § 165,860,432
State and political subdivisions 66,916,401 414,170 (85,363) 67,245,208
Total securities available for sale $ 232,653,034 $ 602,303 $ (149,697) $ 233,105,640
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MIDLAND BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 2: Securities - continued

The amortized cost and fair value of securities, with gross unrealized gains and losses, follows:

December 31, 2014

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Available for Sale Cost Gains Losses Value
U.S. government and agency § 217,138,033 $ 342,558 § (175,499) § 217,305,092
State and political subdivisions 77,406,427 303,781 (218,462) 77,491,746
Total securities available for sale $ 294,544,460 $ 646,339 $ (393,961) § 294,796,838

For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, there were no proceeds from sales of securities available for

sale. There were no gross realized gains or losses for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014.

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, securities with a carrying value of $164,391,261 and $189,947,783,
respectively, were pledged to secure public deposits and for other purposes required or permitted by law.

The amortized cost and fair value of debt securities by contractual maturity at December 31, 2015, follows:

Available for Sale

Amortized Fair
Cost Value
Due in one year or less $ 75,891,054 $ 75,918,720
Due from one to five years 152,487,169 152,805,225
Due from five to ten years 4,274,811 4,381,695
Total $ 232,653,034 $ 233,105,640
=9 =



MIDLAND BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 2: Securities — continued

The following table shows the gross unrealized losses and fair value of the Company’s investments with
unrealized losses that are not deemed to be other-than-temporarily impaired, aggregated by investment category
and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position for twelve months

or more:
December 31, 2015
Less than 12 months 12 months or longer
Gross Gross
Category Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
(number of securities) Value Losses Value Losses
U.S. government and agency (41) $ 71,461,101 $ 64,334 § - $ -
State and political subdivision (31, 10) 28,845,806 47,106 5,369,581 38,257
Total $ 100,306,907 $ 111,440 $ 5,369,581 $ 38,257
December 31, 2014
Less than 12 months 12 months or longer
Gross Gross
Category Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
(number of securities) Value Losses Value Losses
U.S. government and agency (40) $ 64577956 $ 133,208 $ 19.059.900 $ 42,291
State and political subdivision (69) 39,475,627 218,462 - -
Total $ 104,053,583 $ 351,670 $ 19,059,900 $ 42,291

U.S. Government and agency

The unrealized losses on the Company’s investment in U.S. government and agency securities were caused by
interest rate increases. The Company purchased those investments at a discount relative to their face amount, and
the contractual cash flows of those investments are guaranteed by an agency of the U.S. government.
Accordingly, it is expected that the securities would not be settled at a price less than the amortized cost bases of
the Company’s investments. Because the decline in market value is attributable to changes in interest rates and
not credit quality, and because the Company does not intend to sell the investments and it is not more likely than
not that the Company will be required to sell the investments before recovery of their amortized cost bases, which
may be maturity, the Company does not consider those investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at
December 31, 2015 and 2014.
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MIDLAND BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 2: Securities — continued
State and political subdivisions

The unrealized losses on the Company’s investment in state and political subdivisions securities were caused by
interest rate increases. Accordingly, it is expected that the securities would not be settled at a price less than the
amortized cost bases of the Company’s investments. Because the decline in market value is attributable to
changes in interest rates and not credit quality, and because the Company does not intend to sell the investments
and it is not more likely than not that the Company will be required to sell the investments before recovery of
their amortized cost bases, which may be maturity, the Company does not consider those investments to be other-
than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2015 and 2014.

Other-than-temporary impairment

Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment at least on a quarterly basis, and more
frequently when economic or market concerns warrant such evaluation. Consideration is given to (1) the length
of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost, (2) the financial condition and near-term
prospects of the issuer, and (3) evaluation by the Company of (a) its intent to sell a debt security prior to recovery
and (b) whether it is more likely than not the Company will have to sell the debt security prior to recovery. As of
December 31, 2015 and 2014, no investment securities were other-than-temporarily impaired.

NOTE 3: Loans

A summary of the balances of loans follows:
December 31,

2015 2014

Real estate $ 288,433,018 $§ 223,979,545
Construction 62,745,208 59,763,297
Energy 112,750,848 124,297,450
Consumer 12,481,171 11,014,414
Commercial 245,696,341 239,125,292

722,106,586 658,179,998
Less: Allowance for loan losses (10,831,499) (8,155,988)
Loans, net $ 711,275,087 $ 650,024,010




MIDLAND BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 3: Loans — continued

The following table sets forth information regarding the activity in the allowance for loans losses for the year
ended December 31, 2015 (in thousands):

Real estate Construction Energy Consumer Commercial Total

Allowance for credit losses:

Beginning balance $ 2,709 § 518 § 993 % 104 $ 3,832 § 8,156
Charge-offs - - - (13) (2,867) (2,880)
Recoveries - 9 - - 460 469
Provision 2,877 129 (501) 64 2,517 5,086

Ending balance § 5,586 § 656 $ 492§ 155 $ 3942 § 10,831

Ending balance allocated

to loans individually evaluated

for impairment $ 227§ = $ 413 $ = $ 1,669 $ 2,309

Ending balance allocated

to loans collectively evaluated

for impairment $ 5,359 § 656 $ 79 S 155§ 2273 $ 8,522

Loans receivable

Ending balance of

loans individually evaluated

for impairment $ 5,320 $ 681 § 751§ - $ 7806 § 14,558

Ending balance of

loans collectively evaluated

for impairment 283,113 62,064 112,000 12,481 237,890 707,548

Ending balance $ 288,433 § 62,745 § 112,751 $§ 12,481 $§ 245,696 $ 722.106
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MIDLAND BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 3: Loans — continued

The following table sets forth information regarding the activity in the allowance for loans losses for the year

ended December 31, 2014 (in thousands):

Real estate Construction Energy Consumer Commercial Total

Allowance for credit losses:

Beginning balance $ 2,109 §$ 522 % 773 $ 123§ 3,832 § 7,359
Charge-offs 2) - (127) 9) (948) (1,086)
Recoveries 8 - - 4 46 58
Provision 594 4) 347 (14) 902 1,825

Ending balance $ 2,709 $ 518 % 993 § 104 $ 3,832 $ 8,156

Ending balance allocated

to loans individually evaluated

for impairment $ - - 3 292 % - 3 78 § 370
Ending balance allocated

to loans collectively evaluated

for impairment $ 2,709 $ 518 $ 701 $ 104 $ 3,754 $ 7,786
Loans receivable
Ending balance of

loans individually evaluated

for impairment $ 183 $ - $ 800 $ - $ 1,563 § 2,546
Ending balance of

loans collectively evaluated

for impairment 223,797 59,763 123,497 11,014 237,563 655,634
Ending balance $ 223980 $ 59,763 § 124,297 § 11,014 $§ 239,126 $ 658,180

The Company monitors credit quality within its portfolio segments based on primary credit quality indicators. All
of the Company’s loans are evaluated using pass rated or reservable criticized as the primary credit quality
indicator. The term reservable criticized refers to those loans that are internally classified or listed by the
Company as special mention, substandard, doubtful or loss. These assets pose an elevated risk and may have a

high probability of default or total loss.
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NOTE 3: Loans — continued

The classifications of loans reflect a judgment about the risks of default and loss associated with the loan. The
Company reviews the ratings on credits monthly. Ratings are adjusted to reflect the degree of risk and loss that is
felt to be inherent in each credit as of each monthly reporting period. The methodology is structured so that
specific allocations are increased in accordance with deterioration in credit quality (and a corresponding increase
in risk and loss) or decreased in accordance with improvement in credit quality (and a corresponding decrease in
risk and loss).

Credits rated special mention show clear signs of financial weaknesses or deterioration in credit worthiness,
however, such concerns are not so pronounced that the Company generally expects to experience significant loss
within the short-term. Such credits typically maintain the ability to perform within standard credit terms and credit
exposure is not as prominent as credits rated more harshly.

Credits rated substandard are those in which the normal repayment of principal and interest may be, or has been,
Jeopardized by reason of adverse trends or developments of a financial, managerial, economic or political nature,
or important weaknesses exist in collateral. A protracted workout on these credits is a distinct possibility. Prompt
corrective action is therefore required to strengthen the Company’s position, and/or to reduce exposure and to
assure that adequate remedial measures are taken by the borrower. Credit exposure becomes more likely in such
credits and a serious evaluation of the secondary support to the credit is performed.

Credits rated doubtful are those in which full collection of principal appears highly questionable, and which some
degree of loss is anticipated, even though the ultimate amount of loss may not yet be certain and/or other factors
exist which could affect collection of debt. Based upon available information, positive action by the Company is
required to avert or minimize loss. Credits rated doubtful are generally also placed on nonaccrual.

Credits rated loss are those that are considered uncollectible and of such little value that their continuance as
bankable assets is not warranted. This classification does not mean that the asset has absolutely no recovery or
salvage value, but rather that it is not practical or desirable to defer writing off this basically worthless asset even
though partial recovery may be affected in the future.

Pass rated refers to loans that are not considered criticized. In addition to this primary credit quality indicator, the
Company uses other credit quality indicators for certain types of loans.
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MIDLAND BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 3: Loans — continued

The following table sets forth information regarding the internal classification of the loan portfolio as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014 (in thousands):

Real estate:
1-4 Residential $
Commercial real estate
Construction
Energy
Consumer
Commercial

Total $

Real estate:
1-4 Residential $
Commercial real estate
Construction
Energy
Consumer
Commercial

Total $

December 31, 2015

Special

Pass Mention Substandard  Doubtful Loss Total

60,749 % 674 $ 1,322 $ - $ - 62,745
212,729 - 12,732 227 = 225,688

62,064 - 681 - - 62,745

90,281 9,949 12,521 = - 112,751

12,437 - 44 ~ = 12,481
217,357 9,209 19,130 - - 245,696
655,617 $ 19,832 §$ 46,430 $ 227 % - 722,106

December 31, 2014
Special

Pass Mention Substandard  Doubtful Loss Total

49,024 §$ - $ 1,928 § - $ - 50,952
170,233 465 2,330 - - 173,028

59,763 - - - - 59,763
123,397 = 900 - - 124,297

10,857 123 34 = = 11,014
235,839 287 3,000 - - 239,126
649,113 $ 875 $ 8,192 § - $ - 658,180
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 3: Loans — continued

The following table sets forth information regarding the credit risk profile based on payment activity of the loan
portfolio (in thousands):

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Performing Nonperforming Total Performing Nonperforming Total

Real estate:
1-4 Residential $ 62,049 $ 696 § 62,745 $ 50,952 $ - $ 50952
Commercial real estate 221,064 4,624 225,688 172,845 183 173,028
Construction 62,064 681 62,745 59,763 - 59,763
Energy 112,001 750 112,751 123,497 800 124,297
Consumer 12,481 - 12,481 11,014 - 11,014
Commercial 237,889 7,807 245,696 237,563 1,563 239,126
Total $ 707,548 $ 14,558 $ 722,106 $ 655,634 $ 2,546 § 658,180
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NOTE 3: Loans — continued

The following table sets forth information regarding the delinquencies within the loan portfolio as of (in

thousands):
December 31, 2015
Recorded
90 Days Investment
30-89 Days and Total Total > 90 Days and
Past Due Greater Past Due Current Loans Still Accruing
Real estate:
1-4 Residential $ 245 % = $ 245 % 62,500 $ 62,745 % -
Commercial real estate 239 - 239 225,449 225,688 -
Construction 249 - 249 62,496 62,745 -
Energy 868 - 868 111,883 112,751 -
Consumer 53 - 53 12,428 12,481 -
Commercial 970 55 1,025 244,671 245,696 )
Total $ 2,624 § 55 % 2,679 § 719,427 $ 722,106 $ 55
December 31, 2014
Recorded
90 Days Investment
30-89 Days and Total Total > 90 Days and
Past Due Greater Past Due Current Loans Still Accruing
Real estate:
1-4 Residential $ - $ 16 $ 16 $ 50936 $§ 50952 §$ 16
Commercial real estate 153 - 153 172,875 173,028 -
Construction 218 - 218 59,545 59,763 -
Energy 84 - 84 124,213 124,297 -
Consumer 18 - 18 10,996 11,014 =
Commercial 1,152 508 1,660 237,466 239,126 508
Total $ 1,625 $ 5248 2,149 § 656,031 $ 658,180 $ 524
-29 -
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NOTE 3: Loans — continued

The following table sets forth information regarding the nonaccrual within the loan portfolio as of December 31,
2015 (in thousands):

2015 2014
Real estate:
1-4 Residential $ 696 $ -
Commercial real estate 4,545 =
Construction 681 -
Energy - -
Consumer - -
Commercial 7,369 1,479
Total $ 13,291 $ 1,479

A loan is considered impaired, in accordance with the impairment accounting guidance, when based on current
information and events, it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect all amounts due from the
borrower in accordance with the contractual terms of the loan. Impaired loans include nonperforming commercial
loans but also include loans modified in troubled debt restructurings (including those accruing interest) when
concessions have been granted to borrowers experiencing financial difficulties. These concessions could include
a reduction in the interest rate on the loan, payment extensions, forgiveness of principal, forbearance or other
actions intended to maximize collection. The Company did not recognize any interest income on a cash basis on
impaired loans during the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014.
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NOTE 3: Loans — continued

The following table sets forth information regarding modifications within the loan portfolio (dollars in

thousands):
2015
Post-
Pre-Modification =~ Modification
Outstanding Outstanding
Recorded Recorded
Number Investment [nvestment
Troubled Debt Restructuring
Real estate:
1-4 Residential - S - $ -
Commercial real estate 1 184 79
Construction 1 680 681
Energy 2 884 750
Consumer - - -
Commercial 24 2,879 2,476
2014
Post-
Pre-Modification = Modification
Outstanding Outstanding
Recorded Recorded
Number Investment Investment
Troubled Debt Restructuring
Real estate:
1-4 Residential - $ - $ -
Commercial real estate 1 184 183
Construction - - -
Energy 2 853 800
Consumer - - -
Commercial 2 94 84

There have been no subsequently defaulted troubled debt restructurings.
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December 31, 2015 and 2014

MIDLAND BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

The following table sets forth information regarding impaired loans as of December 31, 2015 (in thousands):

With no related allowance:

Real estate:
1-4 Residential
Commercial real estate
Construction
Energy
Consumer
Commercial

With a related allowance:

Real estate:
1-4 Residential
Commercial real estate
Construction
Energy
Consumer
Commercial

Total:

Real estate:
1-4 Residential
Commercial real estate

Construction

Energy

Consumer

Commercial

Unpaid Average Interest
Recorded Principal Related Recorded Income
Investment Balance Allowance Investment ~ Recognized
$ 696 $ 696 § - 3 348 22
1,658 1,658 - 921 18
681 681 - 341 -
4,785 5,059 - 3,132 278
2,966 2,966 227 1,483 -
751 751 413 776 44
3,021 3,272 1,669 1,553 140
696 696 - 348 22
4,624 4,624 227 2,404 18
681 681 - 341 -
751 751 413 776 44
7,806 8,331 1,669 4,685 418
$ 14,558 § 15,083 § 2,309 § 8,554 502
-32-
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The following table sets forth information regarding impaired loans as of December 31, 2014 (in thousands):

With no related allowance:

Real estate:
1-4 Residential
Commercial real estate
Construction
Energy
Consumer
Commercial

With a related allowance:

Real estate:
1-4 Residential
Commercial real estate
Construction
Energy
Consumer
Commercial

Total:

Real estate:
1-4 Residential
Commercial real estate

Construction

Energy

Consumer

Commercial

Unpaid Average Interest
Recorded Principal Related Recorded Income
Investment Balance Allowance Investment  Recognized
$ - $ - 8 - 3 90 -
183 183 - 92 1
- - - 236 -
1,479 1,798 - 1,241 53
800 800 292 608 22
84 84 78 1,093 6
- - - 90 -
183 183 - 92 1
800 800 292 844 22
1,563 1,882 78 2,334 59
$ 2,546 % 2,865 § 370§ 3,360 82

(0%)

(8]
i}
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NOTE 4: Premises and Equipment

A summary of the cost and accumulated depreciation of premises and equipment follows:

December 31,

2015 2014

Land $ 2,041,050 $ 2,041,050
Building and improvements 5,400,899 5,101,562
Equipment 5,897,495 7,946,641
Software 1,639,173 1,103,793
Construction in progress 544,508 843,811

15,523,125 17,036,857
Accumulated depreciation (7,031,991) (8,434,483)

$ 8,491,134 § 8,602,374

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 amounted to $1,067,265 and $903,899,

respectively.

NOTE 5: Deposits

The aggregate amount of time deposits in denominations of $100,000 or more at December 31, 2015 and 2014
was $72,555,388 and $123,511,881, respectively. At December 31, 2015, the scheduled maturities of time

deposits are as follows:
2016

2017

2018

2019

2020 and thereafter

$ 84,381,630
3,676,589
1,125,585

S__89.183.804
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NOTE 6: Income Taxes

Allocation of income taxes between current and deferred portions is as follows:

December 31,

2015 2014
Current federal income tax $ 4297319 $§ 6,262,553
Current state income tax 72,000 72,000
Deferred federal income tax benefit (488,409) (295,607)
Total provision for income tax $ 3,880,910 $ 6,038,946

Income tax expense, as a percentage of pretax earnings, differs from the statutory federal income tax rate at
December 31, 2015 and 2014 is as follows:

2015 2014
Income tax expense at the statutory rate 35.0 % 35.0 %
State income taxes 0.6 0.4
Nontaxable earnings (3.5) (1.5)
Nondeductible expenses 0.4 0.6
Other . 0.1
Effective tax rate 325 % 344 %

Income exempt from federal income tax is the primary reason the effective tax rate differs from statutory federal
income tax rates. The components of the net deferred tax asset (liability), included in other liabilities, are as
follows:

December 31,

2015 2014
Deferred tax assets
Loans receivable $ 3,932,237 $§ 2,995,808
Other - 283,759
3,932,237 3,279,567
Deferred tax liabilities
Premises and equipment (345,100) (426,578)
Intangible asset amortization deductible for tax purposes (2,997,782) (2,777,675)
Unrealized gain on securities available for sale (158,412) (88,332)
Other (25,632) -

(3.,526,926)  (3.292,585)

Net deferred tax asset (liability) $ 405,311 $ (13,018)

-35-
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NOTE 7: Off-Balance-Sheet Activities

The Company is a party to credit related financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of
business to meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to
extend credit and standby letters of credit. Such commitments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and
interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in the statements of condition.

The Company's exposure to credit risk is represented by the contractual amount of these commitments. The
Company follows the same credit policies in making commitments as it does for on-balance-sheet instruments.

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, the following financial instruments were outstanding whose contract amounts
represent credit risk:

Contract Amount

2015 2014
Commitments to extend credit $ 187,145332 $ 216,956,495
Standby letters of credit 14,905,376 16,588,565

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any
condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination
clauses and may require payment of a fee.

The commitments for equity lines of credit may expire without being drawn upon. Therefore, the total
commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The amount of collateral obtained, if
it is deemed necessary by the Company, is based on management's credit evaluation of the customer.

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the performance of a
customer to a third party. Those letters of credit are primarily issued to support public and private borrowing
arrangements. Essentially all letters of credit issued have expiration dates within one year. The credit risk
involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to
customers. The Company generally holds collateral supporting those commitments if deemed necessary.

The Company has no other off-balance-sheet arrangements or transactions with unconsolidated, special purpose
entities that would expose the Company to liability that is not reflected on the face of the financial statements.

NOTE 8: Legal Contingencies

Various legal claims also arise from time to time in the normal course of business which, in the opinion of
management, will have no material effect on the Company’s financial statements.
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NOTE 9: Related Party Transaction

In the ordinary course of business, the Company has granted loans to principal officers and directors and their
affiliates.

Annual activity consisted of the following:

December 31,

2015 2014
Beginning balance § 14,825,457 $ 8,195,755
Additions 3,971,400 9,833,621
Repayments (15,821,825) (3,203,919)
Ending balance $ 2,975,032 $§ 14,825,457

Deposits from related parties held by the Company at December 31, 2015 and 2014 amounted to $31,769,894 and
$19,455,202, respectively.

NOTE 10: Minimum Regulatory Capital Requirements

The Company (on a consolidated basis) and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements
administered by the federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain
mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct
material effect on the Company's and Bank's financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the
regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Company and the Bank must meet specific capital
guidelines that involve quantitative measures of their assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as
calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The capital amounts and classification are also subject to
qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk-weightings, and other factors. Prompt corrective
action provisions are not applicable to bank holding companies.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and the Bank to
maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the following table) of total and Tier I capital (as defined in
the regulations) to risk weighted assets (as defined) and of Tier I capital (as defined) to average assets (as
defined). Management believes, as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, that the Company and the Bank met all
capital adequacy requirements to which they are subject.

As of December 31, 2015, the most recent notification from the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency
categorized the Bank as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be
categorized as well capitalized the Bank must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier I risk-based and Tier I
leverage ratios as set forth in the following tables. There are no conditions or events since the notification that
management believes have changed the Bank’s category.
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NOTE 10: Minimum Regulatory Capital Requirements — continued

Beginning January 1, 2015, community banking organizations became subject to a new regulatory rule recently
adopted by federal banking agencies (commonly referred to as Basel III). The new rule establishes a new
regulatory framework that incorporates revisions to the Basel capital framework, strengthens the definition of
regulatory capital, increases risk-based capital requirements, and amends the methodologies for determining risk-
weighted organizations. Basel III includes a multiyear transition period from January 1, 2015 through December
31,2019.

Management believes that as of December 31, 2015, the Bank would meet all capital requirements under the
Basel III Capital rules on a fully phased-in basis as if the requirements were currently in effect; however, final
rules are subject to regulatory discretion and could result in the need for additional capital levels in the future.

There are no conditions or events since the notification that management believes have changed the Bank’s
category. The Company's and the Bank's actual capital amounts and ratios as of December 31, 2015 are also
presented in the table (in thousands).
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Minimum
To Be Well
Minimum Capitalized Under
Capital Prompt Corrective
Actual Requirement Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
December 31, 2015:
Total Risk-Based Capital to Risk Weighted Assets
Consolidated $ 89,588 99 % $ 72,224 80 % $ N/A N/A
Bank 116,157 12.9 72,174 8.0 90,218 10.0
Common Equity Tier I Capital (CETI) to Risk Weighted Assets
Consolidated 78,462 8.7 40,626 4.5 N/A N/A
Bank 105,031 11.6 40,598 4.5 58,642 6.5
Tier I Capital to Risk Weighted Assets
Consolidated 78,462 8.7 54,168 6.0 N/A N/A
Bank 105,031 11.6 54,131 6.0 72,174 8.0
Tier I Capital to Adjusted Total Assets
Consolidated 78,462 73 43,071 4.0 /A N/A
Bank 105,031 9.8 43,071 4.0 53,839 5.0
Minimum
To Be Well
Minimum Capitalized Under
Capital Prompt Corrective
Actual Requirement Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
December 31, 2014:
Total Capital to Risk Weighted Assets
Consolidated $ 88,487 10.7 % $ 66,187 80 % $ N/A N/A
Bank 92,350 11.2 66,149 8.0 82,686 10.0
Tier I Capital to Risk Weighted Assets
Consolidated 80,036 9.7 33,093 4.0 N/A N/A
Bank 83,899 10.1 33,074 4.0 49,612 6.0
Tier I Capital to Average Total Assets
Consolidated 80,036 6.9 46,520 4.0 N/A N/A
Bank 83,899 7.3 46,076 4.0 57,595 5.0
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NOTE 11: Employee Benefit Plan
Profit-Sharing Plan

The Bank has a profit-sharing plan covering substantially all employees. The plan is a qualified salary reduction
plan under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code, which allows deferral of compensation, effective
January 1, 1987. The plan became effective February 29, 2000. Under this plan, the Bank's annual contribution
to the plan cannot exceed five percent (5%) of eligible compensation, three percent (3%) of which is
nondiscretionary and the other two percent (2%) is at the discretion of the Bank's Board of Directors. Bank
contributions are made in the form of cash or treasury stock. The Bank contributed $357,539 and $301,349 to the
profit-sharing plan in 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Deferred Compensation Plans

The Company has entered into deferred compensation contracts with current key employees. The contracts
provide fixed benefits payable in equal annual installments upon retirement. The Company purchased life
insurance contracts that may be used to fund the payments. The charge to expense is based on the present value
computations of anticipated liabilities. For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, the total expense was
$328,562 and $157,350, respectively. The Company has recorded a liability for the deferred compensation plan
of, $478,338 and $157,350 at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, which are included in accrued expenses
and other liabilities in the consolidated statements of financial condition.

Stock Option Plan

The Company has entered into various stock option agreements that grant options to its officers for a fixed
number of shares of common stock. The exercise price of each option equals the book value of the Company's
stock on the date of grant and is directly adjusted for dividends paid over the life of the option. Due to the direct
reduction of dividends paid adjusting the exercise price of the options, the option valuation model does not utilize
a dividend yield as a factor. All options have maximum terms that extend through the end of employment or
retirement.

Vesting periods range from one to seven years from the date of grant. Effective January 1, 2006, the Company
adopted new authoritative guidance, which requires that compensation cost relating to share-based payment
transactions be recognized in the financial statements with measurement based upon the fair value of the equity or
liability instruments issued. For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company recognized
compensation expense related to stock options totaling $55,512 and $213,500, respectively, and is included as a
part of salaries and employee benefits in the statement of income. As of December 31, 2015, the remaining
compensation expense has been fully recognized.

- 40 -
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Stock Option Plan — continued

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of the grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model with the following weighted-average assumptions:

December 31,

2014
Dividend yield 0%
Expected life 10 years
Expected volatility 46%
Risk-free interest rate 2.0%

The expected volatility is based on historical volatility. The risk-free interest rates for periods within the
contractual life of the awards are based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of the grant. The

expected life is based on historical exercise experience. No options were granted during the year ended December
31,2015.

A summary of the status of the Company’s stock option plans is presented below:

2015 2014

Wtd. Avg. Wtd. Avg.

Shares Ex. Price Shares Ex. Price
Outstanding, beginning of year 18,872 § 58.44 21,080 $ 55.83
Granted - - 1,104 73.26
Exercised (5,624) 44 .45 (3,312) 37.67

Cancelled = _ - _
Outstanding, end of year 13,248 § 61.78 18,872 $ 58.44
Exercisable at end of year 13,248  § 61.78 17,768 § 56.84

4] =
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NOTE 11: Employee Benefit Plan — continued

Information pertaining to options outstanding at December 31, 2015 is as follows:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted
Remaining Average Average
Range of Contractual Exercise Shares Exercise
Exercise Prices Shares Life Price Excercisable Price
$42-$82 13,248 14.54 § 61.78 13,248 $ 61.78
Total 13,248 14.54 $ 61.78 13,248 % 61.78
Weighted
Average
Number of Grant Date
Shares Fair Value
Non-vested stock options, December 31, 2014 1,104 $ 84.09
Granted - -
Vested (1,104) 84.09
Non-vested stock options, December 31, 2015 - $ -

NOTE 12: Restrictions on Dividends

Federal and state banking regulations place certain restrictions on dividends paid by the Bank to the Company.
Such regulations generally restrict cash dividends for the year 2015 to the extent of the Bank's earnings for 2015
plus $12,095,485 of available earnings from prior years. In addition, dividends paid by the Bank would be
prohibited if the effect thereof would cause the Bank's capital to be reduced below applicable minimum capital
requirements.

NOTE 13: Fair Value Measurements

Authoritative guidance defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. A fair value measurement assumes that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability occurs in the principal market for the asset or liability or, in the
absence of a principal market, the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The price in the principal
(or most advantageous) market used to measure the fair value of the asset or liability shall not be adjusted for
transaction costs.



MIDLAND BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 13: Fair Value Measurements — continued

An orderly transaction is a transaction that assumes exposure to the market for a period prior to the measurement
date to allow for marketing activities that are usual and customary for transactions involving such assets and
liabilities; it is not a forced transaction. Market participants are buyers and sellers in the principal market that are
(i) independent, (ii) knowledgeable, (iii) able to transact and (iv) willing to transact.

Authoritative guidance requires the use of valuation techniques that are consistent with the market approach, the
income approach and/or the cost approach. The market approach uses prices and other relevant information
generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets and liabilities. The income approach
uses valuation techniques to convert future amounts, such as cash flows or earnings, to a single present amount on
a discounted basis. The cost approach is based on the amount that currently would be required to replace the
service capacity of an asset (replacement costs). Valuation techniques should be consistently applied. Inputs to
valuation techniques refer to the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability.

Inputs may be observable, meaning those that reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the
asset or liability developed based on market data obtained from independent sources, or unobservable, meaning
those that reflect the reporting entity’s own assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in
pricing the asset or liability developed based on the best information available in the circumstances. In that regard,
authoritative guidance establishes a fair value hierarchy for valuation inputs that gives the highest priority to
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs.

The fair value hierarchy is as follows:

Level 1 Inputs - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the reporting
entity has the ability to access at the measurement date.

Level 2 Inputs - Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly. These include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted
prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that
are observable for the asset or liability (for example, interest rates, volatilities, prepayment speeds, loss severities,
credit risks and default rates) or inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market
data by correlation or other means.

Level 3 Inputs - Significant unobservable inputs that reflect an entity’s own assumptions that market participants
would use in pricing the assets or liabilities.
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NOTE 13: Fair Value Measurements — continued

A description of the valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities measured at fair value, as well as the
general classification of such instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy, is set forth below. In general, fair
value is based upon quoted market prices, where available. If such quoted market prices are not available, fair
value is based upon internally developed models that primarily use, as inputs, observable market-based
parameters. Valuation adjustments may be made to ensure that financial instruments are recorded at fair value.
While management believes the Company’s valuation methodologies are appropriate and consistent with other
market participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain
financial instruments could result in a different estimate of fair value at the reporting date.

Securities Available for Sale - Securities classified as available for sale are reported at fair value utilizing Level 1
and Level 2 inputs. For these securities, the Company obtains fair value measurements from an independent
pricing service. The fair value measurements consider observable data that may include dealer quotes, market
spreads, cash flows, the U. S. Treasury yield curve, live trading levels, trade execution data, market consensus
prepayments speeds, credit information and the bond’s terms and conditions, among other things.

Impaired Loans - Impaired loans are reported at the fair value of the underlying collateral if repayment is

expected solely from the collateral. Collateral values are estimated using Level 3 inputs based on internally
customized discounting criteria.
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The following table summarizes financial assets and nonfinancial liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring

basis as of December 31, 2015, segregated by the level of the valuation inputs within the fair value hierarchy

utilized to measure fair value:

Financial assets:
Investment securities
U.S. government and agency
State and political subdivision

Total financial assets

Financial assets:
Investment securities
U.S. government and agency
State and political subdivision

Total financial assets

December 31, 2015

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Fair
Inputs Inputs Inputs Value
§ 165,860,432 $ - 165,860,432
67,245,208 - 67,245,208
§ 233,105,640 $ - 233,105,640
December 31, 2014
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Fair
Inputs Inputs Inputs Value
§ 217,305,092 $ = 217,305,092
- 77,491,746 - 77,491,746
$ 294,796,838 $ - 294,796,838

Certain nonfinancial assets are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis; that is, the instruments are not

measured at fair value on an ongoing basis but are subject to fair value adjustments in certain circumstances (for

example, when there is evidence of impairment).
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NOTE 13: Fair Value Measurements — continued

The following table summarizes financial assets and nonfinancial liabilities, measured at fair value on a
nonrecurring basis as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, segregated by the level of the valuation inputs within the
fair value hierarchy utilized to measure fair value:

December 31, 2015

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Fair
Inputs Inputs Inputs Value
Financial assets:
Impaired loans $ - $ - $ 12,249.000 $ 12,249,000
$ - $ - $ 12,249,000 $ 12,249,000

December 31, 2014

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Fair
Inputs Inputs Inputs Value
Financial assets:
Impaired loans $ - $ - $ 2,176,000 $ 2,176,000
$ - $ - $ 2,176,000 $ 2,176,000

During the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, certain impaired loans were remeasured and reported at fair
value through a specific valuation allowance allocation of the allowance for possible loan losses based upon the
fair value of the underlying collateral. At December 31, 2015, impaired loans with a carrying value of
$14,558,000 were reduced by specific valuation allowance allocations totaling $2,309,000 to a reported fair value
of $12,249,000. At December 31, 2014, impaired loans with a carrying value of $2,546,000 were reduced by
specific valuation allowance allocations totaling $370,000 to a total reported fair value of $2,176,000. The fair
value of impaired loans is determined based on collateral valuations utilizing Level 3 valuation inputs.
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NOTE 13: Fair Value Measurements — continued

Quantitative information about Significant Unobservable Inputs Used in Level 3 Fair Value Measurements — The
following table represents the Company’s Level 3 financial assets and liabilities, the valuation techniques used to
measure the fair value of those financial assets and liabilities, and the significant unobservable inputs and the
ranges of values for those inputs:

Significant Range of
Fair Value at Principal Valuation Unobservable Significant Input
Instrument December 31, 2015 Technique Inputs Values
Appraisal of Appraisal
Impaired loans $ 12,249,000 collateral (1) adjustment 10-35%

(1) Fair value is generally determined through independent appraisals of the underlying collateral, which

generally include various Level 3 inputs which are not identifiable, less associated allowance.

Significant Range of
Fair Value at Principal Valuation Unobservable Significant Input
Instrument December 31, 2014 Technique Inputs Values
Appraisal of Appraisal
Impaired loans $ 2,176,000 collateral (1) adjustment 10-35%

1) Fair value is generally determined through independent appraisals of the underlying collateral, which
p p g
generally include various Level 3 inputs which are not identifiable, less associated allowance.

Impaired loans that are unsecured are fully reduced by specific valuation allowances.

Those financial instruments not subject to the initial implementation of this guidance, are required to have their
fair value disclosed, both assets and liabilities recognized and not recognized in the statement of financial
condition, for which it is practicable to estimate fair value. Below is a table that summarizes the fair market
values of all financial instruments of the Company at December 31, 2015, followed by methods and assumptions
that were used by the Company in estimating the fair value of the classes of financial instruments. The estimated
fair value amounts of financial instruments have been determined by the Company using available market
information and appropriate valuation methodologies. However, considerable judgment is required to interpret
data to develop the estimates of fair value.

Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts the Company could

realize in a current market exchange. The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation methodologies
may have a material effect on the estimated fair value amounts (in thousands).
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NOTE 13: Fair Value Measurements — continued

The estimated carrying values, and related estimated fair values, of the Company’s financial instruments are as
follows (in thousands):

Total Estimated Fair Value

Carrying Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
December 31, 2015 Amount Inputs Inputs Inputs
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 24,225 24225 $ - $ -
Interest bearing deposits 56,389 56,389 - -
Loans held for sale 668 - 668 -
Loans receivable 699,026 - - 697,266
Accrued interest receivable 3,816 3,816 - -
Restricted investments held at cost 1,774 1,774 - -
Cash surrender value of life insurance 23,606 23,606 - -
Financial liabilities
Deposit liabilities
Noninterest bearing 492,104 492,104 - -
Interest bearing 468,015 - - 463,213
Accrued interest payable 142 142 - -
Subordinated debentures 9,512 - - 9,512
Total Estimated Fair Value
Carrying Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
December 31, 2014 Amount Inputs Inputs Inputs
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 24,296 24,296 § - $ -
Interest bearing deposits 143,264 143,264 - -
Loans held for sale 1,833 - 1,833 -
Loans receivable 650,024 - - 651,857
Accrued interest receivable 3,896 3,896 - -
Restricted investments held at cost 1,744 1,744 - -
Cash surrender value of life insurance 12,535 12,535 - -
Financial liabilities
Deposit liabilities
Noninterest bearing 563,092 563,092 - -
Interest bearing 495,558 - - 490,473
Accrued interest payable 146 146 - -
Line of credit 4,248 4,248 - -
Subordinated debentures 9512 - - 9,512
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MIDLAND BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31,2015 and 2014

NOTE 13: Fair Value Measurements — continued

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Company in estimating the fair value of the above
classes of financial instruments.

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Interest Bearing Deposits, Accrued Interest Receivable, and Accrued Interest
Payable - The carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the relatively short period of time between the
origination of these instruments and their expected realization.

Loans Held for Sale - These loans are reported at the lower of cost or fair value. Fair value is determined based
on expected proceeds based on sales contracts and commitments.

Loans Receivable, Net - Fair values are estimated by stratifying the loan portfolio into groups of loans with
similar financial characteristics. Loans are segregated by type such as real estate, commercial, and consumer,
with each category further segmented into fixed and adjustable rate interest terms.

For mortgage loans, the Company uses the secondary market rates in effect for loans that have similar
characteristics. The fair value of other fixed rate loans is calculated by discounting scheduled cash flows through
the anticipated maturities adjusted for prepayment estimates. Adjustable interest rate loans are assumed to
approximate fair value because they generally reprice within the short term. Fair values are adjusted for credit
risk based on assessment of risk identified with specific loans, and risk adjustments on the remaining portfolio
based on credit loss experience.

Assumptions regarding credit risk are judgmentally determined using specific borrower information, internal
credit quality analysis, and historical information on segmented loan categories for non-specific borrowers.

Restricted Investments Carried at Cost - The carrying value of these investments approximates fair value based
on the redemption provisions contained in each.

Cash surrender value of life insurance - The carrying amount of Bank owned life insurance is based on
information received from the insurance carriers indicating the financial performance of the policies and the
amount the Company would receive should the policies be surrendered.

Deposits Liabilities - The fair value of deposits with no stated maturity, such as checking, passbook, and money
market, is equal to the amount payable on demand. The fair value of time certificates of deposit is based on the
discounted value of contractual cash flows. The discount rate is estimated using the rates currently offered for
deposits of similar maturities.

Line of Credit - The fair value of the Company’s lines of credit are estimated using discounted cash flow analysis
based on the interest rate that would be effective if the borrowings repriced according to their stated terms.
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MIDLAND BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 13: Fair Value Measurements — continued

Subordinated Debentures - The fair value of the Company’s debentures are estimated using discounted cash flow
analysis based on the interest rate that would be effective December 31, 2015, if the borrowings repriced
according to their stated terms.

Off-balance-sheet Instruments - Fair values for off-balance-sheet, credit-related financial instruments are based on
fees currently charged to enter into similar agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements
and the counterparties’ credit standing. These instruments have no carrying value.

NOTE 14: Subordinated Debentures

On September 15, 2005, the Company completed the private placement of $2,810,000 in subordinated debentures
to Midland Statutory Trust I (Trust II). Trust IT funded the purchase of the subordinated debentures through the
sale of trust preferred securities to Preferred Term Securities, Ltd. XIX with a liquidation value of $2.810,000.
The annual percentage rate of the interest payable on the subordinated debentures and distributions payable on the
preferred securities is 3-Month LIBOR plus 1.70% (currently 1.95%). Dividends on the preferred securities are
cumulative and Trust II may defer the payments as long as no acceleration event of default has occurred and is
continuing, by extending the interest payment period on the debentures for up to twenty (20) consecutive
quarterly periods. The preferred securities mature in September 2035.

On September 21, 2006, the Company completed the private placement of $6,702,000 in subordinated debentures
to Midland Statutory Trust IIT (Trust III). Trust III funded the purchase of the subordinated debentures through
the sale of trust preferred securities to Preferred Term Securities, Ltd. XIX with a liquidation value of $6,702,000.
The annual percentage rate of the interest payable on the subordinated debentures and distributions payable on the
preferred securities is 3-Month LIBOR plus 1.70% (currently 1.95%). Dividends on the preferred securities are
cumulative and Trust III may defer the payments as long as no acceleration event of default has occurred and is
continuing, by extending the interest payment period on the debentures for up to twenty (20) consecutive
quarterly periods. The preferred securities mature in December 2036.

Subordinated debt may be included in regulatory Tier 1 capital subject to a limitation that such amounts not
exceed 25% of Tier 1 capital. The remainder of subordinated debt is included in Tier II capital. There is no
limitation for inclusion of subordinated debt in total risk-based capital and, as such, all subordinated debt was
included in total risk-based capital. Interest expense on the subordinated debentures was $191,977 and $186,802
for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014.

NOTE 15: Lines of Credit
As of December 31, 2015, the Bank has unused commitments from four commercial banks to fund purchases up

to $49,000,000. The Company has an additional revolving line of credit with Frost Bank for $10,000,000 which
was unused at December 31, 2015.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 16: Supplementary Cash Flow Information

2015 2014
Interest paid $ 1,309,748  $ 1,305,400
Income tax paid 2,780,000 5,240,000

NOTE 17: Derivatives
Derivative Loan Commitments

Mortgage loan commitments are referred to as derivative loan commitments if the loan that will result from
exercise of the commitment will be held for sale upon funding. The Company enters into commitments to fund
residential mortgage loans at specified times in the future, with the intention that these loans will subsequently be
sold in the secondary market. A mortgage loan commitment binds the Company to lend funds to a potential
borrower at a specified interest rate and within a specified period of time, generally up to 60 days after inception
of the rate lock. Outstanding derivative loan commitments expose the Company to the risk that the price of the
loans arising from exercise of the loan commitment might decline from inception of the rate lock to funding of the
loan due to increases in mortgage interest rates.

If interest rates increase, the value of these loan commitments decreases. Conversely, if interest rates decrease, the
value of these loan commitments increases. The notional amount of undesignated mortgage loan commitments
was $4,179,757 and $3,521,723 at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The fair value of such
commitments was insignificant.

Forward Loan Sale Commitments

To protect against the price risk inherent in derivative loan commitments, the Company utilizes "best efforts"
forward loan sale commitments to mitigate the risk of potential decreases in the values of loans that would result
from the exercise of the derivative loan commitments.

With a "best efforts" contract, the Company commits to deliver an individual mortgage loan of a specified
principal amount and quality to an investor if the loan to the underlying borrower closes. Generally, the price the
investor will pay the seller for an individual loan is specified prior to the loan being funded (for example, on the
same day the lender commits to lend funds to a potential borrower).

The Company expects that these forward loan sale commitments will experience changes in fair value opposite to
the change in fair value of derivative loan commitments. The notional amount of undesignated forward loan sale
commitments was $4,179,757 and $3,521,723 at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The fair value of
such commitments was insignificant.
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NOTE 18: Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated all subsequent events through March 7, 2016, the date the consolidated financial
statements were available to be issued.
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Report of Independent Auditors On Supplementary Information

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Midland Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Midland Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of and
for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, and our report thereon dated March 7, 2016, which expressed
an unmodified opinion on those consolidated financial statements, appears on page 1. Our audit was conducted
for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole. The consolidating,
parent company, and bank financial statements are presented for the purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements
as a whole.

Dt foinaad v (o, PC.

Certified Public Accountants

Abilene, Texas
March 7, 2016
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MIDLAND BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidating Statement of Financial Condition

December 31, 2015

Assets

Cash and due from banks
Cash and cash equivalents

Interest bearing deposits in banks
Securities available for sale

Investment in Midland Statutory Trust II
Investment in Midland Statutory Trust I1I
Investment in subsidiaries

Loans held for sale

Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan losses
Accrued interest receivable

Premises and equipment

Goodwill

Cash surrender value of life insurance
Restricted investments held at cost

Other assets

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

Noninterest bearing
Interest bearing
Total deposits

Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Subordinated debentures
Total liabilities

Shareholders' equity

Common stock
Preferred stock
Capital surplus
Retained earnings
Treasury stock, at cost
Net unrealized appreciation on
available for sale securities, net of tax
Total shareholders' equity

$

Community
Midland National
Bancshares, Bank and
Inc. Subsidiary
156,840 24,225,099
156,840 24,225,099
- 56,388,529
- 233,105,640
85,000 -
202,000 -
117,578,077 -
- 668,415
- 711,275,087
- 3,816,246
- 8,491,134
- 15,251,182
- 23,606,107
- 1,773,644
336,173 1,417,648
118,358,090 1,080,018,731
- 492,261,150
- 468,014,972
960,276,122
10,731 2,164,532
9,512,000 -
9,522,731 962,440,654
875,247 1,750,000
18,260 -
43,049,575 67,704,793
65,031,612 47,829,090
(433,529) -
294,194 294,194
108,835,359 117,578,077

118,358,090 §

1,080,018,731




$

Eliminations

Consolidated

(156,840) $

24,225,099

(156.840)

(117,578,077)

24,225,099

56,388,529
233,105,640
85,000
202,000

668,415
711,275,087
3,816,246
8,491,134
15,251,182
23,606,107
1,773,644
1,753,821

(117,734,917) $

1,080,641,904

(156,840) $ 492,104,310

- 468,014,972
(156,840) 960,119,282

: 2,175,263

: 9,512,000
(156,840) 971,806,545
(1,750,000) 875,247
: 18,260
(67,704,793) 43,049,575
(47,829,090) 65,031,612
- (433,529)
(294,194) 294,194

(117,578,077)

108,835,359

(117,734,917) $

1,080,641,904







MIDLAND BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidating Statement of Income
Year Ended December 31, 2015

Interest income
Loans, including fees
Debt securities
Taxable
Tax exempt
Deposits with banks
Total interest income

Interest expense
Deposits
Line of credit
Subordinated debentures
Total interest expense

Net interest (loss) income
Provision for loan losses

Net interest (loss) income after
provision for loan losses

Noninterest income
Service charges on deposit accounts
Real estate mortgage fees
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries
Debit card income
Other income
Total noninterest income

Noninterest expenses
Salaries and employee benefits
Occupancy and equipment expense
IT and data processing
FDIC assessments
Director compensation
Other expense
Total noninterest expenses

Income before income taxes

Income tax (benefit) expense

Net income

$

Community
Midland National
Bancshares, Bank and
Inc. Subsidiary
- $ 34,228,737
5,813 1,780,767
- 724,528
- 564,064
5,813 37,298,096
- 942,552
171,219 =
191,977 -
363,196 942,552
(357,383) 36,355,544
- 5,086,199
(357,383) 31,269,345
- 1,036,061
- 1,174,693
8.317,903 -
- 941,127
- 1,119,666
8,317,903 4,271,547
- 14,155,611
- 3,113,121
- 1,232,649
- 609,424
- 553,500
62,851 3,530,684
62,851 23,194,989
7,897,669 12,345,903
(147,090) 4,028,000
8,044,759 $ 8,317,903




$

Eliminations

Consolidated

34,228,737

1,786,580
724,528
564,064

37,303,909

942,552
171,219
191,977

1,305,748

35,998,161

5,086,199

(8,317.903)

30,911,962
1,036,061
1,174,693

941,127
1,119,666

(8,317,903)

4,271,547

14,155,611
3,113,121
1,232,649

609,424
553,500
3,593,535

23,257,840

(8,317,903)

11,925,669

3,880,910

(8,317,903) $

8,044,759
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MIDLAND BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES I
Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31, 2015 l
Community l
Midland National
Bancshares, Bank and
Inc. Subsidiary l
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income $ 8,044,759 $ 8,317,903
Adjustments to reconcile net income to l
net cash provided by operating activities
Provision for loan losses - 5,086,199
Net amortization of securities - 3,144,466 '
Depreciation - 1,067,265
Appreciation in cash surrender value of life insurance - (406,910)
Deferred income tax - (488,409)
Undistributed earnings of subsidiaries (6,817,903) - l
Stock based compensation 555512 -
Net change in
Loans held for sale - 1,165,012 '
Accrued interest receivable - 80,151
Other assets (147,110) (486,805)
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 2) 915,706 l
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,135,256 18,394,578
Cash flows from investing activities '
Net change in interest bearing deposits in banks - 86,875,439
Capital contribution to subsidiary (13,980,000) -
Activity in available for sale securities
Maturities, prepayments and calls - 210,789,917 l
Purchases - (152,042,957)
Purchase of life insurance policies - (10,664,449)
Net change in restricted investements held at cost - (29,715) l
Loan originations and principal collections, net - (66,337.,276)
Additions to premises and equipment - (956,025)
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (13,980,000) 67,634,934 '
Cash flows from financing activities
Net decrease in deposits : (98,580,576) |
Net change in short term borrowing (4,248,000) -
Proceeds from sale of preferred stock 18,260,000 -
Proceeds from sale of treasury stock 247,212 -
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 253,929 - l
Capital contributions from Midland Bancshares, Inc. - 13,980,000
Dividends paid (1,717,999) (1,500,000)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 12,795,142 (86,100,576) l
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (49,602) (71,064)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 206,442 24,296,163 l
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 156,840 $ 24,225,099 l



Eliminations

Consolidated

(8,317,903) $

8,044,759

5,086,199

3,144,466

1,067,265
(406,910)
(488.409)

55,512

1,165,012

80,151
(633,915)

915,704

(1,500,000)

13,980,600

18,029,834

86,875,439

210,789,917
(152,042,957)
(10,664,449)
(29,715)
(66,337,276)
(956,025)

13,980,000

49,602

(13,980,000)
1,500,000

67,634,934

(98,530,974)
(4,248,000)
18,260,000

247,212
253,929

(1,717,999)

(12,430,398)

(85,735,832)

49,602 (71,064)
(206,442) 24,296,163
(156,840) $ 24,225,099
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MIDLAND BANCSHARES, INC.
(PARENT COMPANY)
Statements of Financial Condition

December 31, 2015 and 2014

Assets

Cash and due from banks

Investment in Midland Statutory Trust II
Investment in Midland Statutory Trust III
Investment in subsidiaries

Other assets

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Line of credit
Subordinated debentures

Total liabilities

Shareholders' equity

Common stock

Preferred stock

Capital surplus

Retained earnings

Treasury stock, at cost

Net unrealized appreciation on

available for sale securities, net of tax

Total shareholders' equity
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2015 2014
156,840 $ 206,442
85,000 85,000
202,000 202,000
117,578,077 96,650,026
336,173 189,063
118,358,090 $ 97,332,531
10,731 $ 10,733
; 4,248,000
9,512,000 9,512,000
9,522,731 13,770,733
875,247 869,623
18,260 ;
43,049,575 24,329,180
65,031,612 58,704,852
(433,529) (505,903)
294,194 164,046
108,835,350 83,561,798
118,358,090 $ 97,332,531




MIDLAND BANCSHARES, INC.
(PARENT COMPANY)
Statements of Income
Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

Income
Interest income
Total income

Expenses
Interest on subordinated debentures
Interest on line of credit
Other expense
Total expenses

Loss before income taxes
and equity in earnings of subsidiaries

Income tax benefit
Loss before equity in earnings of subsidiaries
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries

Dividend income

Undistributed earnings of subsidiaries

Total equity in earnings of subsidiaries

Net income
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2015 2014
5,813 5,636
5,813 5,636

191,977 186,802
171,219 263,412
62,851 10,920
426,047 761,134
(420,234) (455,498)
(147,090) (159,417)
(273,144) (296,081)

1,500,000 6,518,771

6,817,903 5,277,582

8,317,003 11,796,353

8,044,759 11,500,272




MIDLAND BANCSHARES, INC.
(PARENT COMPANY)
Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

2015 2014
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income 8,044,759 §$ 11,500,272
Adjustments to reconcile net income to
net cash provided by operating activities
Undistributed earnings of subsidiaries (6,817,903) (5,277,582)
Stock based compensation 55,512 213,500
Net change in
Other assets (147,110) (37,991)
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 2) -
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,135,256 6,398,199
Cash flows from investing activities
Capital contribution to subsidiary (13,980,000) (1,600,000)
Net cash used in investing activities (13,980,000) (1,600,000)
Cash flows from financing activities
Net change in short term borrowing (4,248,000) (3,352,000)
Proceeds from sale of preferred stock 18,260,000 -
Proceeds from sale of treasury stock 247,212 212,439
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 253,929 128,075
Dividends paid (1,717,999) (1,704,948)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 12,795,142 (4,716,434)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (49,602) 81,765
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 206,442 124,677
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 156,840 $ 206,442
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COMMUNITY NATIONAL BANK AND SUBSIDIARY
Statements of Financial Condition
December 31, 2015 and 2014

Assets

Cash and due from banks
Cash and cash equivalents

Interest bearing deposits in banks

Securities available for sale

Loans held for sale

Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan losses
Accrued interest receivable

Premises and equipment

Goodwill

Cash surrender value of life insurance

Restricted investments held at cost

Other assets

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

Noninterest bearing
Interest bearing
Total deposits

Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Total liabilities

Shareholders' equity

Common stock
Capital surplus
Undivided profits
Net unrealized appreciation on
available for sale securities, net of tax
Total shareholders' equity
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2015 2014
$ 24,225,099 §$ 24,296,163
24,225,099 24,296,163
56,388,529 143,263,968
233,105,640 294,796,838
668,415 1,833,427
711,275,087 650,024,010
3,816,246 3,896,397
8,491,134 8,602,374
15,251,182 15,251,182
23,606,107 12,534,748
1,773,644 1,743,929
1,417,648 930,843
§ 1,080,018,731 § 1,157,173,879
$ 492,261,150 $ 563,298.825
468,014,972 495,557,873
960,276,122 1,058,856,698
2,164,532 1,667,155
962,440,654 1,060,523,853
1,750,000 1,750,000
67,704,793 53,724,793
47,829,090 41,011,187
294,194 164,046
117,578,077 96,650,026
$ 1,080,018,731 § 1,157,173,879




Interest income

COMMUNITY NATIONAL BANK AND SUBSIDIARY

Statements of Income
Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

Loans, including fees $

Debt securities
Taxable
Tax exempt
Deposits with banks

Total interest income

Interest expense
Deposits

Total interest expense

Net interest income

Provision for loan losses

Net interest income after provision for loan losses

Noninterest income

Service charges on deposit accounts
Real estate mortgage fees

Debit card income
Other income

Total noninterest income

Noninterest expenses

Salaries and employee benefits
Occupancy and equipment expense
IT and data processing

FDIC assessments

Director compensation

Other expense

Total noninterest expenses

Income before income taxes

Income tax expense

Net income

2015 2014
34,228,737 § 36,381,484
1,780,767 1,861,863
724,528 732,827
564,064 533,431
37,298,096 39,509,605
942,552 850,971
942,552 850,971
36,355,544 38,658,634
5,086,199 1,825,000
31,269,345 36,833,634
1,036,061 1,036,919
1,174,693 1,087,209
941,127 989,018
1,119,666 508,467
4,271,547 3,621,613
14,155,611 13,107,638
3,113,121 3,147,601
1,232,649 1,713,355
609,424 565,060
553,500 567,500
3,530,684 3,359,377
23,194,989 22,460,531
12,345,903 17,994,716
4,028,000 6,198,363
8,317,903 § 11,796,353
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COMMUNITY NATIONAL BANK AND SUBSIDIARY

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to
net cash provided by operating activities
Provision for loan losses
Net amortization of securities
Depreciation
Appreciation in cash surrender value of life insurance
Deferred income tax
Net change in
Loans held for sale
Accrued interest receivable
Other assets
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Net change in interest bearing deposits in banks
Activity in available for sale securities

Maturities, prepayments and calls

Purchases
Purchase of life insurance policies
Net change in restricted investments held at cost
Loan originations and principal collections, net
Additions to premises and equipment

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Net (decrease) increase in deposits
Capital contributions from Midland Bancshares, Inc.
Dividends paid
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
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2015 2014
$ 8,317,903 $ 11,796,353
5,086,199 1,825,000
3,144,466 3,496,622
1,067,265 903,899
(406,910) (34,748)
(488.,409) (295,607)
1,165,012 187,156
80,151 (329.671)
(486.805) 20,753
915,706 144,754
18,394,578 17,714,511
86,875,439 (1,159,523)
210,789,917 223,689,931

(152,042,957)
(10,664,449)

(247,387,207)
(12,500,000)

(29,715) (110,297)
(66,337,276) (66,068,706)
(956,025) (1,556,562)
67,634,034 (105,092.364)

(98,580,576) 74,807,915
13,980,000 1,600,000
(1,500,000) (6,518,771)

(86,100,576) 69,889,144
(71,064) (17,488,709)
24,296,163 41,784,872

$ 24225099 $ 24,296,163




